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Please see attached the COVID-19 Inquiry appointments brief. It is also in PDMS (MB23-000120).

The events brief for the announcement will follow later this afternoon.

Kind regards,

5 22(1)(a)(i)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

| Senior Advisor

Mental Health, Hospitals and First Nations Health | Health and Aged Care Branch

Intergovernmental Relations and Reform Division | Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
One National Circuit, Barton ACT 2600 | PO Box 6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600

0.5 22(1)(a)(ii)
The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and

Traditional Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational
practices of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.
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Deputy Secretary Social Policy Group; _

Cc: Steel, Lee
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Please let me know if you would like any further information on any of the potential candidates

listed below.

Thanks
Kim

From: Dobbie, Kim <Kim.Dobbie@pmc.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 4 September 2023 3:14 PM

To

Cc: Steel, Lee <Lee.Steel@pmc.gov.au>;

Subject: *FYI* COVID Inquiry Taskforce - appointments and ToR [SEC=PROTECTED]
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As promised in Friday’s meeting, please see below summary of next steps to appoint the COVID-
19 Inquiry panel members:
o PM&C will talk with proposed panel members to confirm their interest in participating in
the Independent Panel.

0 The proposed panel members have requested clarification on the time
requirement and milestones involved. PM&C is preparing a draft work program
to provide this clarification.

e Subject to confirming interest, PM&C will send proposed panel members the mandatory
appointment forms for completion (CV and Private Interests Declaration).

PM&C will provide a PM brief to appoint the panel members. This will attach all
necessary documentation and ask the PM to sign instruments of appointment and
letters to the panel members who have been appointed.

e PM&C will organise Deeds of Engagement for each panel member and organise
onboarding.

Thanks
Kim

Kim Dobbie (she/her) | A/g Assistant Secretary

Health and Aged Care Branch|Intergovernmental Relations and Reform Division

Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
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DEPARTMENT OF THE PRIME MINISTER AND CABINET

To: Prime Minister
THROUGH: Cabinet Secretary
A NATIONAL INQUIRY INTO AUSTRALIA'S COVID-19 RESPONSE

Recommendations - that you:

1. Note the Government has several options for setting up an inquiry into Australia’s
COVID-19 response. The most appropriate option for Government would be based on
expectations around timing for establishing the inquiry, scope, desired powers, and cost.

Noted
s47C
Agreed / Not Agreed
ANTHONY ALBANESE Date:
Comments:
Key Points:

1. As Australia nears the three-year mark of responding to COVID-19, and has moved to
non-emergency COVID-19 response settings, there is growing public and political interest
for an examination of Australia’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Government
has committed to conducting a ‘deep inquiry” into Australia’s COVID-19 response.

a. To date, there have been several reviews focusing on Australia’s pandemic
performance, ranging from multi-year audits undertaken or planned by the Australian
National Audit Office (ANAO), to the broader and more comprehensive independent
reviews — as seen with Fault Lines: An independent review into Australia’s response
to COVID-19 (the Shergold Review) released on 20 October 2022, and the Senate
Select Committee on COVID-19 which tabled its final report in April 2022.

b. All states and territories, except the Northern Territory, have conducted — or are in the
process of conducting — parliamentary inquiries into their COVID-19 responses.
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A National Inquiry into Australia’s COVID-19 Res

4. The Government is currently progressing work to transition COVID-19 response measures
to long term sustainable arrangements from January 2023.
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Sensitivities:
11.

Background:

15. In response to calls for a Commonwealth review, you stated on 20 October 2022 that:
‘I have said clearly that my government will undertake, at some future time, a proper
inquiry into the impact of the pandemic, the actions of governments. We need to learn the
lessons from the pandemic. It is quite clear some of the lessons we have learnt and have
indicated that we are responding to.’

16. The Governments of New Zealand, the United States, Canada, Singapore and France are
in a similar stage as the Australian Government, having announced they will conduct
respective inquiries into their COVID-19 responses ‘in due time’ or at the “appropriate
time’.

Consultation:
Legal Policy, Government Division; Commonwealth-State Relations Branch; COVID-19
Transition Taskforce; and FOI, Cabinet Division.

Alison Frame Polici Officer: _

Deputy Secretary

Social Policy Group Phone no: s 22()@)(i)

7 November 2022
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Document 6

To: Prime Minister

SUBJECT: Commonwealth COVID-19 Response Inquiry Announcement

TIME/DATE: Wednesday, 20 September 2023

VENUE: Hunter Region, New South Wales [PMO to confirm]

Event Details

e The Commonwealth Government COVID-19 Response Inquiry (the Inquiry) will be announced at a
press conference on Wednesday, 20 September 2023.

Key Points

e The Government is launching an inquiry into the Commonwealth Government’s COVID-19 response
to identify lessons learned to improve Australia’s future pandemic preparedness. It will look at both
the health and non-health elements of the Commonwealth’s COVID-19 response.

e The Inquiry will be led by an Independent Panel; comprised of Ms Robyn Kruk AO (Chair),
Dr Angela Jackson and Professor Catherine Bennett.

e The Inquiry will commence on 2 October 2023, and deliver its Final Report to Government by
30 September 2024.

Talking Points (Further talking points to be provided by the Media Team)
e The COVID-19 pandemic had a profound impact on the lives of all Australians.

e The Commonwealth responded to unprecedented health and economics challenges throughout the
pandemic.

Last year | committed to hold an inquiry into Australia’s handling of the COVID-19 pandemic. Now is
the right time to take stock of how we responded to the pandemic and identify the lessons we have
learned to improve our preparedness for future pandemics.

| am pleased to announce the Inquiry will be led by an Independent Panel comprised of
Ms Robyn Kruk AO, Dr Angela Jackson, and Professor Catherine Bennett.

The Panel has vast experience in public health, government and economic expertise.

0 Ms Kruk has a wealth of experience in government and in leading independent reviews. Ms Kruk
is a former Director-General of the NSW Department of Health, Secretary of the Commonwealth
Department of the Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts and CEO of the National Mental
Health Commission.

o Dr Jackson is a health economist with extensive experience in economics and government.
Dr Jackson is the lead economist for Impact Economics and Policy, a member of the Economic
Inclusion Advisory Committee and the National Chair of the Women in Economics Network.

0 Professor Bennett is the Alfred Deakin Professor and Chair in Epidemiology at Deakin
University. Professor Bennett was previously an Associate Professor in Epidemiology and the
Director of Population Health Practice at the University of Melbourne and the founding Chair and
President of the Council of Academic Public Health Institutions Australia.

e The Inquiry will commence on 2 October 2023, and deliver its Final Report to Government by
30 September 2024.
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